
NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health Decision Day

Date and Time Tuesday, 13th March, 2018 at 10.00 am

Place Mitchell Room, Elizabeth II Court, The Castle, Winchester

Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website.  
The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Filming Protocol available on the County Council’s website.

AGENDA

NON-KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL)

1. OUTCOME ON THE CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSED 
CLOSURE OF BULMER HOUSE DAY SERVICE IN PETERSFIELD 
AND MASTERS HOUSE DAY SERVICE IN ROMSEY  (Pages 3 - 72)

To consider a report of the Director of Adults’ Health and Care regarding 
the outcomes of the consultation and the recommendations for the future 
of Bulmer House Day Service in Petersfield and Masters House Day 
Service in Romsey.

2. SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES GRANT AWARD  (Pages 73 - 80)

To consider a report of the Director of Adult’s Health and Care regarding 
grant awards to voluntary and community organisations.

Public Document Pack



NON-KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL)

3. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

Recommendation:

To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
following item of business, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if 
members of the public were present during this item there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information within Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, and further that in all 
the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, for 
the reasons set out in the report.

4. HARRY SOTNICK HOUSE  (Pages 81 - 94)

To consider an exempt report from the Director of Adults’ Health and 
Care regarding provision of nursing at Harry Sotnick House.

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING:
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance.

County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses.

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Date: 13 March 2018

Title: Outcome on the consultation on the proposed closure of 
Bulmer House Day Service in Petersfield and Masters House 
Day Service in Romsey

Report From: Director of Adults’ Health and Care

Contact name: Karen Ashton 

Tel:  01962 845612 Email: karen.ashton@hants.gov.uk

1. Recommendations
1.1. That the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health considers the 

responses to the consultation and considers the Equalities Impact 
Assessments in relation to the proposals contained within this paper.

1.2. That permission is granted by the Executive Member for Adult Social Care 
and Health to close the current Bulmer House day service in Petersfield.

1.3. That permission is granted by the Executive Member for Adult Social Care 
and Health to close the current Masters House day service in Romsey.

1.4. That the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health recognises the 
significant contribution that has been made by the staff at both Bulmer House 
and Masters House day services.

1.5. That the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health and the Health 
and Adult Social Care Select Committee receive an update on the progress 
and success of the alternative options identified for service users and their 
carers, and outcomes for staff members choosing redeployment or voluntary 
redundancy.

2. Executive Summary 
2.1. The purpose of this paper is to report to the Executive Member for Adult 

Social Care and Health the outcomes of the consultation and the 
recommendations for the future of Bulmer House Day Service in Petersfield 
and Masters House Day Service in Romsey.  The report outlines the 
approach taken to the consultation, in particular with users of the service, 
their families and carers and with staff and the availability of alternative day 
service provision and opportunities for day time activities for older people.

2.2. On 13 November 2017 Hampshire County Council started an eight week 
consultation on the future of two day services for older people; Bulmer House 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



in Petersfield and Masters House in Romsey. Both services are run by 
Hampshire County Council. 

2.3. Until spring 2014 both day services were located in Hampshire County 
Council-run older people’s residential homes; Master’s House in Nightingale 
Lodge and Bulmer House in the residential home of the same name. In 
December 2013, following extensive public consultation, the County Council 
Cabinet took the decision to close the residential homes, and recommended 
that the associated day services be relocated in temporary accommodation 
until such time as they could move into the new-build Extra Care housing 
schemes planned for Romsey and Petersfield.

2.4. Over time demand for day service provision for older people in this sort of 
traditional setting has been declining across Hampshire. Increasingly, people 
are choosing other models of care to meet their individual needs. This has 
impacted on demand for both the services that the County Council operates 
itself as well as the services that it commissions from the voluntary and 
private sectors. 

2.5. Both of the day services are currently operating out of temporary 
accommodation.  Master’s House is located in Hayter House in Romsey, site 
of the former Registry Office; Bulmer House is operating from rented 
accommodation in the Ramscote Centre, a supported living housing scheme 
run by Radian Housing, adjacent to the former residential home in Petersfield. 
Both services continued to receive referrals until the start of the consultation 
in November.

2.6. At the start of the consultation there were seven people using Bulmer House 
day service and 21 using the Masters House day service. This meant that the 
services were operating at approximately 35% and 40% capacity respectively.

2.7. The consultation was held between 13 November 2017 and 7 January 2018. 
This was judged to be an appropriate period for consultation given the 
number of people that use each service as well as their families and the staff 
affected. It also allowed other stakeholders and interested parties to 
participate.  The consultation included events for users of the day services 
and their families and carers; two in Romsey and one in Petersfield. 
Dedicated social work and care management staff were made available to 
support the users of the services and their families as well as to discuss and 
explore alternative options with them, in the event that the decision is made to 
close one or both of the services. Independent advocacy was also offered to 
service users and their families.

2.8. Feedback received during the consultation indicated that the majority of 
people were opposed to the closure of both Bulmer House and Masters 
House day services. More detailed feedback from the consultation is covered 
in section 9 of this report.

3. Summary of Recommendations
3.1. The decision has to be a balanced consideration of all of the factors including 

the responses to the consultation, the financial pressures faced by the County 
Council, the under-utilisation of the services, the needs and welfare of the 

Page 4



current users of the day services, as well as the future needs of older people 
in the Petersfield and Romsey areas and the availability, quality, and market 
capacity of alternative day service and day opportunities. 

3.2. Wherever possible, the County Council would seek to retain the skills and 
expertise of the current staff working in the two day services. The consultation 
stated that it would seek redeployment opportunities for all staff and that there 
would be no redundancies.  During the course of the consultation however, a 
number of members of staff indicated that they would like the opportunity to 
consider redundancy, therefore a redundancy window was opened from 1 
February to 14 February 2018, to allow them to express their interest in taking 
redundancy.  This would be subject to the decision being made to close the 
service(s).  Agreement to release staff would only be made where there are 
particular personal circumstances and barriers mean there was no suitable 
alternative role available. 

3.3. Having carefully considered the consultation responses in detail, the care 
needs and wellbeing of the 19 remaining users of the two day services the 
report seeks approval for the closure of Bulmer House Day Service in 
Petersfield and Masters House Day Service in Romsey.

3.4. In response to the issues raised during the consultation regarding the impact 
upon service users and their carers, the County Council has significant 
experience of supporting people to move and adapt to new services in order 
to minimise any disruption and ensure consistency of care.  All regular service 
users would be provided with alternative options that take into account their 
needs and preferences and would receive appropriate support to transition to 
using these services, prior to any closure of Bulmer House and Masters 
House day services.  Friendship groups are being identified so that they can 
be taken into account should people want to continue to attend services 
together if the decision is made to close either or both of these services.

3.5. The County Council recognises the role that these services also provide in 
terms of respite for carers. In order to mitigate any impact on carers, no 
current service users would receive lower levels of service than they currently 
do should the decision be made to close either or both of these services.

3.6. In response to concerns raised during the consultation regarding alternative 
provision and as well as suggestions that ways should be considered to keep 
the services open, designated social work staff are continuing to work with the 
users of the services, as well as their carers and families, to ensure they 
would be able to access alternative services or activities that meet their 
identified care needs.  The County Council, continues to review the services it 
commissions from the independent sector as well as those that it provides 
directly and is committed to ensuring there is a mixed economy of care 
provision across the county which offers people a wide range of choices.

3.7. The County Council continues to be responsible for the safety of clients 
placed in independent sector services and ensuring that the care provided 
there meets their needs.

Page 5



4. Contextual information
4.1. Hampshire County Council aims to build resilient communities which enable a 

culture of participation, so that people can look outwards to their communities 
for support, as well as developing cost effective care and support solutions. 
Its long-term strategic approach is to develop a wider range of services that 
maximise independence for, and meet the care and support needs of adults 
with an eligible social care need whilst minimising costs to the taxpayer.

4.2. The County Council is focussed on supporting people to live as independently 
as possible. As part of this strategy the Council is promoting the use of 
personalised care and support for people. People know how much they have 
to spend on their care in the form of a personal budget. They are then able to 
choose the services, including day services and activities, which meet their 
identified needs and, where appropriate, pay for them with funding received 
via a direct payment. This has meant that people have increased 
expectations of the services they receive and can direct their own services to 
meet their own priorities.

4.3. The County Council undertook an open public consultation called Serving 
Hampshire – Balancing the Budget which ran for six weeks between 3 July 
and 21 August 2017. The proposals to be considered in this consultation are 
therefore part of the Council’s response to the challenges of meeting people’s 
changing needs and expectations with reduced available resources, as set 
out in the Serving Hampshire consultation. 

4.4. The challenge for Hampshire County Council’s Adults’ Health and Care 
department is clear in that it must deliver the right quality of affordable care to 
meet the needs of clients, whilst transforming the mechanisms and channels 
by which needs are met. Achieving budget savings targets is extremely 
challenging and cannot be achieved without impact on frontline services.

4.5. Adults’ Health and Care department has a savings target of £55.9m for 
2018/19. It therefore has to consider carefully how resources are used to 
ensure the best outcomes for individuals and the best value for money.

5. Bulmer House Day Service
5.1. Bulmer House Day Service is located in Petersfield. Until spring 2014 it was 

located in Bulmer House older people’s residential care home which was 
closed following a decision by the County Council’s Cabinet made in 
December 2013. The service is currently operating out of rented 
accommodation in Ramscote House, a sheltered housing scheme, adjacent 
to Bulmer House.

5.2. The day centre currently offers 96 sessions per week (12 morning sessions 
and 12 afternoon sessions each day, 4 days per week).  At the start of the 
consultation period there were 7 people using the day service, the majority of 
whom were aged over 80 and almost all of whom have some form of 
dementia. That represented approximately 35% of total capacity; not all users 
attend every day, nor do all users attend both morning and afternoon 
sessions. 

Page 6



5.3. When the consultation opened the day service stopped taking any new 
service users. During the course of the consultation those people who use the 
service and their families and carers have been supported to consider and 
explore alternative day services or opportunities for day time activities in the 
event that Bulmer House day service closes. There are currently 6 people 
now using the day service.

6. Master’s House Day Service
6.1. Master’s House Day Service is located in Romsey. Until spring 2014 it was 

located in Nightingale Lodge older people’s residential care home which was 
closed following a decision by the County Council’s Cabinet made in 
December 2013. The service is currently operating from Hayter House, a 
Hampshire County Council-owned building, which formerly housed Romsey 
Registry Office.

6.2. The day centre currently offers 120 sessions per week (12 morning sessions 
and 12 afternoon sessions each day, 5 days per week). At the start of the 
consultation period there were 21 people using the day service aged all of 
whom were aged over 70.  That represented approximately 40% of total 
capacity; not all users attend every day, nor do all users attend both morning 
and afternoon sessions.

6.3. When the consultation opened the day service stopped taking any new 
service users. During the course of the consultation those people who use the 
service and their families and carers have been supported to consider and 
explore alternative day services or opportunities for day time activities in the 
event that Masters House day service closes. There are currently 13 people 
now using the day service. 

7. Future Day Opportunities Provision
7.1. During the consultation period designated social work staff met with the 

people who used both Bulmer House and Masters House day services and 
their families and carers to explore other potential options that they may wish 
to use for day services or other day-time activities. This work has resulted in a 
high level of confidence that alternative services could be found for all the 
current users of the services, should the decision be made to close the 
services.

7.2. It is proposed that in the event that the decision is made to close these 
services the people currently using the services are offered alternative day 
opportunities in Romsey, Petersfield or other locations which would meet their 
needs (some people may find services closer to where they live). In the event 
that the decision is made to close one, or both, of the services, the service(s) 
would not actually close until suitable alternative arrangements had been 
made for all of the current service users.

7.3. In terms of future provision, people would be supported to access alternatives 
to traditional day care services. People would be offered direct payments to 
enable them to arrange day services and other activities for themselves. This 

Page 7



would enable them to take advantage of options such as carer replacement 
services, social activities and groups as alternatives to traditional respite 
services. For those people who have been assessed as requiring day 
opportunities in a more traditional setting, other in-house facilities as well as 
private-sector alternatives would be considered.

7.4. A number of alternative services have been identified in Petersfield and the 
surrounding area.  This information has been based on proximity to where 
current service users live.  There are 5 day services within the wider area, as 
well as up to eight residential homes that could be considered that offer some 
form of traditional day care or day service. It is important to note that not 
every service user would be able to access all of these, dependent upon their 
individual needs, conditions and circumstances. There are also a number of 
other options within the area that could be considered as alternatives to 
traditional day services including lunch clubs and similar groups.

7.5. A number of alternative services have been identified in Romsey and the 
surrounding area.  This information has been based on proximity to where 
current service users live.  There are up to ten residential homes that could 
be considered that offer some form of traditional day care or day service. It is 
important to note that not every service user would be able to access all of 
these, dependent upon their individual needs, conditions and circumstances. 
There are also a number of other options within the area that could be 
considered as alternatives to traditional day services. These include lunch 
clubs, friendship groups, memory groups and senior exercise groups.

8. The Consultation
8.1. The ‘Consultation on the proposed closure of Bulmer House and Masters 

House day services’ sought the views of stakeholders and the general public 
on the proposals to close Bulmer House day service in Petersfield and 
Masters House day service in Romsey. The consultation was launched on 13 
November 2017 and closed on 7 January 2018. Responses received up to 9 
January have been taken into account in this report.

8.2. An information pack and integral response form were published on the 
County Council’s website. The response form was also provided as an online 
survey.  Alternative formats, such as braille, audio, easy-read or large print, 
were made available upon demand, although none were requested. 
Unstructured responses sent through other means, such as email or as 
written letters, and received by the consultation’s close were also accepted as 
feedback.

8.3. Printed copies of the information pack and response form were sent to all 
current service users, along with a covering letter and pre-paid envelope. 
Service users and/or next of kin were telephoned after the letter had been 
delivered to follow up on any questions they might have, and to draw their 
attention to the consultation drop-in events. 

8.4. Three drop-in / surgery sessions were held during the consultation period: two 
in Romsey and one in Petersfield. At these, service users, their families and 
carers were offered the opportunity to meet on a one-to-one basis with senior 

Page 8



managers from the Adults’ Health and Care Department to discuss these 
proposals, as well as alternative services. 

8.5. During the consultation, including at the drop-in sessions, independent 
advocates were made available to support service users, as well as their 
families and carers to participate in the consultation. 

8.6. A workshop for members of the County Council’s Health and Adult Social 
Care Select Committee was held on 7 December 2017.  This allowed the 
select committee members to discuss the proposals with officers from the 
Adults’ Health and Care Department and to raise any concerns they may 
have had as well as to provide feedback.  During the workshop the following 
topics were specifically discussed; the approach to the consultation; 
alternative service provision; the support being given to staff affected by the 
consultation as well as the opportunity to raise wider issues. The outputs of 
this meeting, which can be found in Appendix 1 of this report, formed part of 
the wider feedback to the consultation.

8.7. The consultation was promoted through the County Council’s website, media 
release and through corporate social media channels. Letters about the 
consultation were also sent to staff and local stakeholders, including local 
government councillors and constituency Members of Parliament.

9. Responses to the Consultation
9.1. The consultation received 65 responses. The majority of respondents were 

current service users and family members or carers of those that attend or 
use the services. The report detailing the full findings from the consultation is 
in Appendix 2.

9.2. 53 respondents out of 65 disagreed with the proposals to close Bulmer House 
Day Service and Masters House Day Service, wanting both day services to 
remain open.

Key Themes
9.3. Disagreement with the proposed closures was widespread across respondent 

groups, with family members or carers of users and service users themselves 
all strongly against the proposal to close the day services. 

9.4. Respondents expressed concern about the potential negative impact on the 
wellbeing of service users if the day services should close. Respondents 
reported that the social contact and interaction service users have with staff is 
very important, particularly those who have dementia. Respondents value the 
services provided, and feel confident that they are leaving their loved ones in 
a safe and secure environment. Respondents think that the day services 
provide service users with stimulation and social interaction; not merely 
'sitting’ services. Without these services and this level of interaction, 
respondents thought that the health of service users could deteriorate. 

9.5. Respondents suggested that if the services should close, carers may not be 
able to cope without the much needed respite. Comments also suggest that 
carers are typically older and often the spouse of the service user, therefore 

Page 9



the proposed closures could negatively impact on the carer’s physical and 
mental health.

9.6. A common theme among respondents was the concern that the services 
were not widely publicised and that referrals to the service appeared to be 
low. Respondents thought that promotion of the available services could be 
improved. 

9.7. If the decision should be made to close the day services, respondents would 
want assurance that a comparable level of support would be available.

9.8. Some respondents suggested that although the County Council could stop 
running the day services directly, it could continue to commission the service 
from another provider, with some of those respondents suggesting this should 
be provided in the same location. However, there is some uncertainty 
amongst respondents as to how proposed alternatives would meet the needs 
of existing users. If an alternative was chosen, it is paramount to respondents 
that service users are safe and that there is comparable care, using familiar 
staff. 

9.9. Some respondents suggested that keeping the facility open, albeit with a 
reduction in accompanying services such as transport and food provision, 
would be preferable to total closure.

10. Staffing implications
10.1. At the start of the consultation there were 7 members of staff working at 

Master’s House day service (equating to 5.3 full-time members of staff) and 5 
members of staff working at Bulmer House day service (equating to to 3.6 full-
time members of staff). However, since then 1 member of staff from Bulmer 
House has resigned.

10.2. A formal HR consultation process ran alongside the public consultation, 
which also closed on 7 January 2018. Staff were given the opportunity to 
contribute to the public consultation as well if they chose. 

10.3. During the course of the consultation, dedicated HR resource was made 
available to support the staff. At the start of the consultation face-to-face 
briefings were held with the staff in both services. This was followed, later in 
the consultation by HR drop-in sessions in both services so that staff could 
raise any concerns and discuss their individual circumstances.

10.4. It became apparent through the consultation process with staff that despite 
strenuous efforts on behalf of Hampshire County Council it might not be 
possible to find suitable alternative employment for all the staff potentially 
affected.  Although vacancies in the residential homes exist they do not 
always represent suitable alternative employment given the location of the 
homes and some of the challenges staff have in relation to travel and / or 
working different shift patterns.   As a consequence an Enhanced Voluntary 
Redundancy (EVR) option was offered to staff, but on the basis that this 
would only be considered if it was not possible to source suitable alternative 
employment and subject to a decision being made to close the services.

Page 10



10.5. If proposals are taken forward to close either or both services, every effort 
will be made to identify suitable alternative employment within Hampshire 
County Council for those people who have opted for redeployment. The one-
to-one meetings with HR have enabled intelligence to be gathered to support 
redeployment.  Staff who continue to work for Hampshire County Council will 
be offered additional training, if required, to ensure they are fully supported in 
their new roles. It is expected there would be no compulsory redundancies.  

10.6. A full Equalities Impact Assessment on the impact of these proposals on 
the staff working in the day services has been carried out. In carrying out the 
Equalities Impact Assessment those characteristics that relate specifically to 
the staff working in the day services, namely age and gender, have been 
specifically considered. 

10.7. Age - An age profile analysis of the staff working in the 2 services has been 
undertaken. The profile revealed that 75% of the staff are aged 55 and above 
(2 are aged 65 or above).  One of the key means of reducing the impact of 
the possible job losses is the offer of an enhanced voluntary redundancy 
scheme, applicable to all staff with more than 2 years service. Following the 
staff consultation period a voluntary redundancy window was opened and 
staff invited to express an interest. The Council’s redundancy scheme 
recognises length of service, and hence an ‘older age’ profile may reflect 
greater length of service and hence potentially a more attractive voluntary 
redundancy package.

10.8. Gender - It has been identified that all of the staff working in the 2 services 
are women, however there is a clear gender bias towards women being 
employed in such services across Adults’ Health and Care.  The key activity 
in terms of mitigating this has been to ensure that all staff affected have had 
as much opportunity as possible to be actively involved in the staff 
consultation, in order that they are as informed as possible about their future 
career options.

11. Finance 
11.1. The annual budget associated with this proposal for the two services is 

shown below:
Bulmer House £168,000 
Master’s House £159,000  
Total £327,000

11.2. As outlined in 4.3 and 5.3 the average utilisation of the service capacity at 
Bulmer House and Master’s House at the start of the consultation period was 
approximately 35% and 40% respectively. The savings generated by these 
proposals are calculated on these utilisation levels.

11.3. This level of utilisation translates to an average cost per day of £152 which 
is significantly higher than either the cost of the services we block contract 
with external providers or the costs charged by external providers for 
individual sessions. The average cost of a full day from these existing 
purchasing arrangements is estimated to be broadly £55. 

Page 11



11.4. The proportion of the £327,000 budget that would be released through this 
proposal would be dependent on the cost of reprovision. Detailed planning for 
this is in progress and would be dependent upon the agreed alternative 
services for each individual service user. Reprovision would be likely to 
consist either of independent sector provision, use of direct payments to 
purchase alternatives or use of other in-house services.

11.5. If all reprovision, based on the utilisation levels at the start of the 
consultation, were to be done via the highest cost option, i.e. use of 
independent sector, it is estimated that the total re-provision costs would be 
approximately £60,000 for Bulmer House and £90,000 for Master’s House. It 
should be noted that as the numbers of service users has reduced since the 
start of the consultation this reprovision has, in effect already begun.

11.6. The anticipated minimum saving to be achieved through this initiative is 
therefore estimated to be in the order of £177,000. The actual saving may 
differ once a full review of client needs is undertaken and the final number of 
sessions that need re-provision is confirmed. This saving will contribute to the 
department’s Transformation to 2019 savings programme of £55.9m should 
the decision be made to close the services.

12. Legal implications
12.1. Local authorities have a duty under the Equality Act 2010 section 149 to 

have due regard to the need to: eliminate discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation; to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not share it; and foster 
good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it. 

13. Equalities impact assessment
13.1. A full Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out on the 

recommendations to close Bulmer House and Master’s House day services.  
In carrying out the Equalities Impact Assessment those characteristics that 
relate specifically to the users of the day services and their families have 
been specifically considered. These are age, disability and marital status 
(specifically the need to maintain significant relationships with spouses or 
partners). 

13.2. Each of the services, were considered individually, however the issues that 
arose were common to both services.

13.3. Age. These services are primarily aimed at older people (people 55+). With 
the exception of one person, all of the people who currently use these 
services are in their 70s, 80s and 90s. 

13.4. The users of these services would be supported to access alternative 
services. During the course of the consultation, dedicated social work 
resource has been made available to them and their carers / families to help 
understand their care needs and how they could be met by alternative 
services or activities. Where requested, independent advocates have also 

Page 12



helped the service users with this.  Should the decision be made to close 
either or both of these services, this support from social work staff and 
advocates would continue in the lead up to and during their move to 
alternative services. This would include familiarisation visits. The families of 
the service users would be fully involved where appropriate. Friendship 
groups would also be taken into account should people want to continue to 
attend the same services.

13.5. Disability. Many of the people who use these services have either dementia 
and / or a very physically frail; several also have a learning disability. This 
could mean they may find it difficult to adjust to new services, in the event that 
the decision is made to close the day services.

13.6. If people would find it difficult to adjust because of their dementia or other 
conditions, then they would be supported to trial new services and if 
necessary to transition to them by social work staff. Independent advocacy 
would also continue to be offered to them to help if it is required.

13.7. Marriage and civil partnership. Attending these services helps to enable a 
number of couples to remain living at home together. As well as providing a 
service for the people who use them, they also provide respite for an 
individual’s carer / family. Without such services, people may require other 
forms of care such as residential or nursing care.

13.8. No-one would receive a lower level of service than they currently do if the 
decision is made to close the services.  People would be supported to use 
alternative services or activities that meet their identified needs. The County 
Council recognises that there is a requirement to ensure that these proposals 
do not impact upon the ability of the current users of the services to maintain 
their relationships with their spouses, partners, wider family members and 
friends. In the event that the decision is taken to close either or both of the 
services then they would not close until such time as all of the current service 
users have been supported to move to alternative services or activities.

14. Conclusion
14.1. Having thoroughly taken into account the feedback from the consultation 

and the findings of the equalities impact assessments, it is recommended that 
the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health grants permission to 
close Bulmer House Day Service in Petersfield and Masters House Day 
Service in Romsey.

Page 13



Integral Appendix A

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic
growth and prosperity:

No

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent
lives:

Yes

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment:

No

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities:

Yes

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 14



Integral Appendix B

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS:

1. Equality Duty
1.1. The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 

(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Act;

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those 
who do not share it;

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
1.2.  The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing 

a relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;
1.3.  Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
1.4.  Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate 

in public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low.

1.5. Equalities Impact Assessment:
(a) An equalities impact assessment has been carried to understand the 

impact that the proposals in this report would have on the people who use the 
services, their families and carers. It has been identified that there would be 
particular impacts in terms of age, disability and marriage / civil partnership 
status. Full details including mitigating actions can be found in section 12 of 
this report.

(b)  Additionally, an equalities impact assessment has been carried to 
understand the impact that the proposals in this report would have on the staff 
who work in the services. It has been identified that there would be particular 
impacts in terms of age and gender. Full details including mitigating actions 
can be found in section 9 of this report.

2. Impact on Crime and Disorder:
2.1. No impacts have been identified

3. Climate Change:
3.1. How does what is being proposed impact on our carbon footprint / energy 

consumption?

Page 15



Integral Appendix B

No impacts have been identified

3.2. How does what is being proposed consider the need to adapt to climate 
change, and be resilient to its longer term impacts?

Page 16



Appendix 1

Health and Adult Social Care Select (Overview and Scrutiny) 
Committee

Summary of Workshop Session Questions relating to the ‘Bulmer House 
and Masters House Day Services’ Consultation

A workshop session was attended by members of the HASC (attendees are listed 
at Appendix 1) in order to consider proposals relating to the consultation, and to 
discuss in tables four key questions, the responses to which are listed below.

Q1. Is there anything further [Adults’ Health and Care] can do to engage and 
consult with the public on this topic?

Most of the discussion under this question related to how the County Council 
could harness information on other organisations, community groups, and 
individuals, who may provide day opportunities in Hampshire. In addition, points 
were made on:

 Developing further a map of day opportunities across the County, and 
utilising this data to underpin the ‘Connect to Support’ offer.

 Potentially using Parish Councils to distribute the details of the consultation 
and also to help collate information on the network of day opportunities 
available across the County.

 Ensuring that providers of day services, such as the charity Age Concern, 
are engaged on the consultation. 

 The importance of ensuring that every response to the consultation is 
weighted the same, with equal value given to service user and carer views. 

 Ensuring that any changes resulting from the consultation are evidence-
based, and to clarify regarding the under-utilisation of services that 
individuals had the opportunity to use these day services but have either 
chosen not to, or it has been determined that services do not meet their 
needs.

Q2. What do you think will be the concerns that should be addressed on 
alternative provision? What other alternative provision could [Adults’ Health 
and Care] explore for service users?

Key points were made on:
 Being honest with the public, and service users and their carers, about why 

the day services are proposed to close, and what the alternatives are.  
Members agreed that there were positives that could arise from these 
changes, such as more tailored support, and a move away from unsuitable 

Page 17



Appendix 1

traditional activities, but that change was often difficult and would require 
support throughout and post-implementation. 

 Ensuring that the diverse needs of service users are understood so that 
support can be tailored to meet their needs

 Sense checking other services that may be listed as appropriate alternative 
provision, to ensure that any opportunities are sustainably funded and can 
absorb additional activity. 

 Capacity planning for the future; ensuring that the services available now 
can flex in the future, and are fit for the future, given the increasing number 
of older people.

 Harnessing the wider network of services and support in the community, 
such as lunch clubs and social groups. 

 Potentially using services that already exist in residential and nursing homes 
that may not usually be on offer to those not in a full-time care setting. 

 Exploring how the County’s grants scheme can support those individuals 
who provide bespoke day opportunities but do not necessarily have the 
business set-up to make bids for funding.  There may be opportunities to put 
larger charities or community groups in contact with such individuals to help 
them mutually support and benefit one another. 

 Considering whether funding can be made available to pump-prime day 
opportunities.

 Working with community champions, such as village agents, to empower 
local people to contribute their ideas about how to deliver social care in their 
area.

 Ensuring that any offers of alternative services are appropriate, and 
accessible. Location remained important, both now and in the future when 
mobility may not be as easy for service users.  To additionally take account 
of other impacting changes relating to travel and transport.

 Any alternative day opportunities should be affordable for those funding their 
own care in the future.

 Respite services for carers need to be protected. 

Q3. Is there anything further you think [Adults’ Health and Care] should do 
to support staff through the consultation, and in light of the proposals?

Key points were made on:

Page 18



Appendix 1

 Being explicit and honest with staff about the options under consideration, 
and wider issues relating to the ‘Transformation to 2019’ proposals.

 Supporting staff to see the potential closures as a positive development, 
which could lead to training and development, and different opportunities to 
do something that contributes to improving quality of life for service users 
and their families.

 Utilising the skills of staff through redeployment, as those who have worked 
in a day opportunity setting will have a different mind and skill set to those 
who work in residential teams, in terms of hosting activities and having 
strong relationships with service users and their carers. 

 Providing support to staff throughout and after any changes, in order to 
ensure that staff are supported.  This may include access to CV writing and 
interview techniques should they wish to leave the Council. 

 Giving staff help with transport costs, if redeployment results in a longer 
journey to their place of work.

Q4. Any further views that haven’t been covered?

Key points were made on:
 How the Council can use local assets for community-owned day 

opportunities, e.g. a local café or pub for coffee mornings, or a library for a 
reading group. This could be in a similar format to that already tried and 
tested with Alzheimer’s cafes. 

 Highlighting ‘Connect to Support’ to local councillors and giving them 
through this the tools to pass on knowledge to local communities about 
what services exist in the County. 

 Using an honest media strategy post-consultation. If services are 
determined to be closed as they are underutilised and not suitable for older 
people’s needs, the Council should be transparent about this.  Further, the 
Council should regularly update the public and councillors on the progress 
of extra care schemes and the positive impact these will have on 
communities.

 Exploring wellbeing approaches rather than services that are just for one 
category of individual, i.e. older people or those with physical disabilities. 
Examples were given of successful projects where those in residential 
homes regularly spend time with school-age children, or young mums 
meeting with older mums. 

Page 19



Appendix 1

 It would be very important to have a post-decision and implementation 
evaluation, so that no service user is ‘worse off’ as a result of the changes.

Councillor Roger Huxstep
Hampshire Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee (HASC)
December 2017

Page 20



Appendix 1

Appendix 1 – Attendees to the 7 December Workshop Session

HASC

 Cllr Ann Briggs

 Cllr Adam Carew

 Cllr Fran Carpenter

 Cllr Charles Choudhary

 Cllr Tonia Craig

 Cllr Alan Dowden

 Cllr David Harrison

 Cllr Marge Harvey

 Cllr Pal Hayre

 Cllr Roger Huxstep

 Cllr David Keast

 Cllr Mike Thornton

Co-opted Members

 Cllr Alison Finlay

Deputy Members

 Cllr Dominic Hiscock

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

0 
 

 

 

Consultation on the proposed closure 

of Bulmer House and Masters House 

Day Services  
 

 

Findings report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 23



 

1 
 

 

 

Contents 

 

Introduction........................................................................................................... 2 

The proposals ....................................................................................................... 3 

Consultation approach ......................................................................................... 5 

Publication of data ................................................................................................ 6 

Findings from the consultation .............................................................................. 7 

Detailed findings ................................................................................................... 9 

Views on alternative options ............................................................................... 13 

Views on the potential impact of the proposals .................................................. 18 

Summary of discussion at the Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee 
workshop ............................................................................................................ 23 

Conclusion.......................................................................................................... 25 

Appendices......................................................................................................... 26 

Appendix 1 - Consultation Response Form (Standard Format) .......................... 26 

Appendix 2 – Consultation technical detail ......................................................... 34 

Appendix 3 – Consultation participant break down ............................................. 35 

Appendix 4 – Coded responses ......................................................................... 37 

Appendix 5 – Data tables ................................................................................... 40 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 24



 

2 
 

Introduction  

 

Hampshire County Council is proposing to close Bulmer House Day Service in 

Petersfield and Masters House Day Service in Romsey. These services are mainly 

used by people with high-end dementia needs. A consultation was carried out from 

Monday 13 November 2017 to Sunday 7 January 2018. 

 

This report set out the findings from that consultation.  

 

 

Context 

The County Council ensures that the way services are provided is regularly 

reviewed to ensure that the available funding for Adult Health and Care services 

continues to be prioritised on supporting the most vulnerable residents.  

 

The County Council wishes to support people to make their own decisions about 

the care support they need and how they receive it. Hampshire residents are 

increasingly choosing to move away from traditional forms of care to options that 

meet their own individual requirements. 

 

This trend, combined with the nature of the current provision, which operates out of 

temporary accommodation, has resulted in a decline in the usage of day services 

at both Bulmer House and Masters House.  

 

 

Consultation aims 

The consultation on the proposed closure of Bulmer House and Masters House 

Day Services sought to understand: 

 

 The extent to which service users and stakeholders agreed or disagreed with 

the proposed closures. 

 Service users’ and stakeholders’ views on any alternative options for day 

service delivery.  

 Service users’ and stakeholders’ views on any potential impact the proposed 

closures would have on them or anyone else.  

 

The County Council is committed to listening to the views of service users and 

stakeholders before deciding whether or not the proposed closures would take 

place. The findings set out in this report will help to inform the County Council’s 

decision on the proposals.  

  

Page 25



 

3 
 

The proposals 

 

Hampshire County Council is proposing to close Bulmer House Day Service in 

Petersfield and Masters House Day Service in Romsey. These services are mainly 

used by people with high-end dementia needs. 

 

It is planned that the proposed new Extra Care Housing schemes in Petersfield 

and Romsey will contain facilities that could be used for day services or similar 

activities. These schemes could operate as community ‘hubs’ that offer space for 

both Extra Care residents and local older people to use for various activities such 

as lunch clubs or day services. 

 

If the decision is made to close Bulmer House Day Service in Petersfield and 

Masters House Day Service in Romsey, the County Council would put in place 

alternative solutions which meet individual service users’ assessed care needs. 

These would take into account factors such as travelling distance, maintaining 

friendship groups as well as the suitability of the service.  

 

In both cases of the proposed closure of Bulmer House and Masters House, 

alternative day service provision could include services such as day care in a 

residential setting, or community-based day care. Wherever possible, and in line 

with its responsibilities, the Adults’ Health and Care Department will seek to 

minimise the impact on vulnerable people.  

 

In the event that a decision is taken to close either or both services, every person 

affected would be supported by specialist care managers to access suitable, 

alternative services that meet their individual needs.   

 

 

About Bulmer House Day Service  

Bulmer House Day Service is currently operating from the Ramscote Centre in 

Petersfield.  

 

The Day Service provides 12 places over four days per week for older people with 

an assessed need for care services. The current service users are predominantly 

from the Petersfield area. The service is currently supporting six people.  

 

Take up of sessions at Bulmer House Day Service is currently around 35% of the 

total number of sessions available. This is the result of people with lower levels of 

care needs choosing not to attend traditional day services, as well as the nature of 

the current provision which operates out of temporary accommodation in 

Petersfield. 

Page 26



 

4 
 

 

About Masters House Day Service 

Masters House Day Service is currently operating from Hayter House (the site of 

the former Register Office) in Romsey.  

 

Masters House provides 12 places over five days per week, for older adults with an 

assessed need for care services. The current service users are predominantly from 

the Romsey area. The service is currently supporting 13 people. 

 

Take up of sessions at Masters House Day Service is currently around 40% of the 

total number of sessions available. This is the result of people with lower levels of 

care needs choosing not to attend traditional day services, as well as the nature of 

the current provision, operating out of temporary accommodation in Romsey. 

 

  

Page 27



 

5 
 

Consultation approach 

 

The County Council carried out an open public consultation designed to give the 

general public and stakeholders the opportunity to have their say about the 

proposals.  

 

An information pack and integrated response form were published on the County 

Council’s website: 

https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/bulmerhouse

mastershouse. The Response Form was also provided as an online survey.  

 

Alternative formats, such as Braille, audio, Easy Read or large print, were made 

available upon demand, although none were requested. Unstructured responses 

sent through other means, such as email or written letters, and received by the 

consultation’s close were also accepted.  

 

Printed copies of the Information Pack and Response Form were sent to all current 

service users, along with a covering letter and pre-paid envelope. Service users 

and/or next of kin were telephoned after the letter had been delivered to follow up 

on any questions they might have, and to draw their attention to the consultation 

drop-in events (see below).  

 

During the course of the consultation, dedicated social work staff supported current 

service users and their families to explore alternative day service provision, in the 

event that the services should close.  

 

Three drop-in sessions were held during the consultation period: two in Romsey 

and one in Petersfield. Service users were also offered the opportunity to meet on 

a one-to-one basis with senior managers from the Adults’ Health and Care 

Department to discuss these proposals, as well as alternative services. At these 

meetings, service users were also supported by independent advocacy workers. 

 

The consultation was promoted through Hampshire County Council’s website, 

media releases and through corporate social media channels. Letters about the 

consultation were also sent to staff and local stakeholders, including local 

government councillors and constituency Members of Parliament.  

 

  

Page 28

https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/bulmerhousemastershouse
https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/bulmerhousemastershouse


 

6 
 

Publication of data 

 

Personal information provided as part of the consultation this will be treated in 

accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998. Personal information will be used 

for analytical purposes only. Hampshire County Council will not share the 

information collected as part of this consultation with third parties. All individuals’ 

responses will be kept confidential and will not be shared. Responses from groups 

or organisations may be published in full.  

 

Hampshire County Council will securely retain and store copies of the responses 

for one year after the end of the consultation process, and then delete the data. 

 

More details on how the County Council holds personal information can be found 

at: www.hants.gov.uk/privacy. Should you require any further information about 

how your details will be used or stored, please contact the Data Protection Team at 

data.protection@hants.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 29



 

7 
 

Findings from the consultation 

 

Summary of key findings 

The consultation received 65 responses. The majority of respondents were current 

service users and family members or carers of those that attend or use the 

services.  

 

53 respondents out of 65 disagreed with the proposals to close Bulmer House Day 

Service and Masters House Day Service, wanting both day services to remain 

open.  

 

Disagreement with the proposed closures was widespread across respondent 

groups, with family members or carers of users and service users themselves all 

strongly against the proposal to close the day services.  

 

Respondents expressed concern about the potential negative impact on the 

wellbeing of service users if the day services should close. Respondents reported 

that the social contact and interaction service users have with staff is very 

important, particularly those who have dementia; the day services provide more 

than just a 'sitting’ service. Respondents value the day services provided, and feel 

confident that they are leaving their loved ones in a safe and secure environment. 

Without these services and this level of interaction, respondents thought that the 

health of service users could deteriorate. 

 

Respondents suggested that if the services should close, carers may not be able to 

cope without the much needed respite. Comments also suggest that carers are 

typically older and often the spouse of the service user, therefore the proposed 

closures could negatively impact on the carer’s physical and mental health. 

 

A common theme among respondents was the concern that the services were not 

widely publicised and that referrals to the service appeared to be low. Respondents 

thought that promotion of the available services could be improved.  

 

If the decision should be made to close the day services, respondents would want 

assurance that a comparable level of support would be available. 

 

Some respondents suggested that although the County Council could stop running 

the day services directly, it could continue to commission the service from another 

provider, with some of those respondents suggesting this should be provided in the 

same location. However, there is some uncertainty amongst respondents as to 

how proposed alternatives would meet the needs of existing users. If an alternative 

Page 30



 

8 
 

was chosen, it is paramount to respondents that service users are safe and that 

there is comparable care, with familiar staff.  

 

Some respondents suggested that keeping the facility open, albeit with a reduction 

in accompanying services such as transport and food provision, would be 

preferable to total closure.  

  

Page 31



 

9 
 

Detailed findings  

 

The proposal to close Bulmer House Day Service and Masters House Day 

Service 
 

Respondents were asked to what extent they supported the County Council’s 

proposal to close Bulmer House Day Service in Petersfield and Masters House 

Day Service in Romsey. Information regarding the consultation was included in the 

Information Pack and can be found at the following web address: 

https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/bulmerhouse

mastershouse  
 

The consultation received 65 responses in total. There was a marginally higher 

response rate for the question relating to the proposed closure of Masters House 

Day Service in Romsey compared to the question relating to the proposed closure 

of Bulmer House Day Service in Petersfield.  
 

There was a strong level of opposition to the decision to close both day services. 

 

The proposal to close Bulmer House Day Service 

Respondents were asked, ‘To what extent do you agree or disagree with the 

proposal to close Bulmer House Day Service?’ The pie chart below shows the level 

of overall opinion.1 
 

Respondents have strong concerns about the proposal to close Bulmer House, 

with 32 respondents out of 40 either disagreeing or strongly disagreeing with the 

proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Base: 40 

 

                                                 
1
 Due to the small number of consultation responses that were received, raw figures are used in 

place of percentages, as the number of responses can not be taken as a representative sample.  

0 
1 

6 

4 

28 

1 

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

Not sure

Page 32

https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/bulmerhousemastershouse
https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/bulmerhousemastershouse


 

10 
 

What do different respondents think about the proposals to close Bulmer 

House Day Service?  

 

The majority of respondents for this question were family members or carers of 

service users, or individuals who previously used or know someone that used to 

use the two services.  

 

There was a negative response regarding the closure of Bulmer House Day 

Service from all response groups:  

 13 respondents out of 16 who indicated that they were family members or 

carers of service users said they either disagree or strongly disagree with the 

proposal to close Bulmer House Day Service. 

 Five responses were from those who indicated they were service users. All five 

respondents said that they either disagree or strongly disagree with the 

proposal to close Bulmer House. The chart below shows the number of 

respondents who disagree or agree with the proposals, by their indicated group. 

 

Number of respondents who agree or disagree with the closure of Bulmer House, 

by respondent type. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Base: 41 

1 

3 

5 

3 

9 

13 

0 

2 

2 

2 

0 

1 

Other

Member of the local
community

or local group in Petersfield

User of Bulmer House
 or Masters House Day

Services

Member of the local
community

or local group in Romsey

I, or someone I know,
used to use these services

A family member/ carer
of somebody that uses Bulmer

House
or Masters House Day

Services

Disagree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Agree

Page 33



 

11 
 

The proposal to close Masters House Day Service 

Respondents were asked, ‘To what extent do you agree or disagree with the 

proposal to close Masters House Day Service?’ The pie chart below shows the 

level of overall agreement.2 

 

Respondents have strong concerns about the proposal to close Masters House 

Day Service, with 49 respondents out of 58 either disagreeing or strongly 

disagreeing with the proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Base: 58 

 

 

 

What do different respondents think about the proposal to close Masters 

House Day Service? 

  

The majority of respondents for this question were family members or carers of 

service users, or individuals who previously used or know someone that used to 

use the two services.  

 

 There was a strong negative response regarding the closure of Masters 

House Day Service from all response groups. All 18 respondents that 

indicated they were a family member or carer said they either disagree or 

strongly disagree with the proposal to close Masters House Day Service. 

 Eight responses were from those that indicated they were service users. Six 

of these respondents indicated they either disagree or strongly disagree with 

the proposal.  

                                                 
2
 Due to the small number of consultation responses that were received, raw figures are used in 

place of percentages, as the number of responses can not be taken as a representative sample.  

0 0 4 

7 

42 

6 

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

Not sure

Page 34



 

12 
 

 

The chart below shows the number of respondents who agree or disagree with the 

proposal, by their indicated group:  

 

Number of respondents who agree or disagree with the closure of Masters House, 

by respondent type. 

 

 

 

Base: 59 

 

0 

2 

3 

6 

11 

16 

18 

1 

0 

2 

0 

1 

Member of the local
community or
local group in

Petersfield

Working or worked at
 Bulmer House or Masters

House

Other

User of Bulmer House
or Masters House Day

Service

Member of the local
community or local group

in Romsey

I, or someone I know,
 used to use these services

Family member
/carer of somebody

that uses Bulmer House
or Masters House Day

Service

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Page 35



 

13 
 

 

Views on alternative options 
 

Respondents gave their views on what alternative options the County Council 

could consider for both Bulmer House Day Service and Masters House Day 

Service. Respondents were concerned about the closures and wanted the current 

services to remain. Other respondents suggested that although the County Council 

could stop providing the service directly, the service could be commissioned from 

another provider from either the private or voluntary sector. A small number of 

respondents suggested that the day services should remain, but at a reduced cost, 

in order to ensure the service remains operational.   

 

Bulmer House alternative options: 

Respondents gave their views on what alternative options the County Council 

could consider for Bulmer House Day Service. 15 respondents gave an open-

ended response to this question. Many of the comments received suggested 

retaining the current service as it is, or providing an alternative that would ensure 

current service users have the same level of care. Themes that were mentioned 

are shown below, followed by an analysis of these themes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Improve and retain the current service: 

Six respondents stated that the existing service should remain as it is; it was 

perceived that any alternative would not provide the level of care needed for 

service users and carers:   

 

“Bulmer House Day Services provides a safe, secure, stimulating 

environment for severe dementia sufferers. It allows crucial respite 

for carers - who are secure in the knowledge that their husband etc. 

is safe.” 

 

“I do not think there are any alternatives that would come up to the 

services and friendliness supplied at Bulmer House.” 

Page 36



 

14 
 

 

It was suggested that the level of service should remain the same, or improved on, 

and that the service should be offered more widely:  

 

“The Council should consider retaining the service as is or providing 

a suitable alternative. The Council should at least provide an 

alternative venue and service that is as easily accessible to the 

current users, with the same staff members, level of facilities and 

activities. Users should not be disadvantaged and the service should 

be more widely offered.” 

 

Respondents were also concerned about having continuity of service, and that the 

level of care given should not be compromised if the proposals went ahead:   

 

“The County Council has given no specific suggestions on what 

services will be provided in the event that the Day Service is closed. 

This needs to be addressed as a matter of urgency. There needs to 

be a detailed plan in place as to how those with severe dementia can 

receive care at least as good as (preferably better than) what is 

currently in place. The County Council should abandon all plans for 

closure until this is in place.” 

 

Commissioning the service:  

Three comments suggested that the service could be run by an alternative external 

provider, such as a voluntary sector organisation, and also expressed concerns 

over the use of private sector care providers:  

 

“Some people need respite care and find that residential homes do 

not provide a good group service - just a 'sitting service'. There is a 

service being developed called 'Sundowners' that could be asked to 

provide an alternative respite service in the area.” 

 

“Running voluntary sector led day activities within a wider activity 

based centre, such as a current residential home. People with 

dementia need routine but also engagement with a wider group and 

environment.” 

 

 

In addition, there were two suggestions that Bulmer House could use other 

methods to generate income when the facilities are not in use, in order to keep the 

existing service:  

 

Page 37



 

15 
 

“…If the County Council consider these facilities a financial burden, 

then perhaps more active or innovative management of the sites 

should be undertaken before resigning to it's closure? From the 

outside it would appear the County Council has given up, and 

creative ways of keeping the facilities open appear unexplored. For 

example the facility could be open to others with general care needs, 

open/inclusive of private clients, the facilities could be rented out 

when not in use (i.e. for parties) or other option(s) considered which 

could generate an income to the County Council.” 

 

 

Masters House alternative options: 

Respondents gave their views on what alternative options the County Council 

could consider for Masters House Day Service. 37 respondents gave an open-

ended response to this question. Many of the comments received related to 

retaining the current services as they are, as well as concerns around the 

promotion of current services. Themes that were mentioned are shown below, 

followed by an analysis of these themes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Retaining the current service: 

13 respondents voiced concerns that the current service should be retained, on the 

basis that there is a lack of alternatives:   

 

“Masters House needs to stay open. There are very few alternatives 

and what alternatives there are, are very expensive” 

 

 

  

Page 38



 

16 
 

Promotion and use of the service: 

10 comments were about concerns that current promotion of Masters House Day 

Service is poor. There are also concerns that more should be done to ensure that 

those that need care for high-end dementia are provided for, and will be in the 

future:  

 

“Advertise the services more. I work at a local hospital and have 

NEVER seen the Masters House service shown anywhere. How are 

people to know about these things. I do talk to carers who don't know 

about any outside help. My friends mum used to love going to her 

day centre but her dad had a day when he knew she was safe. These 

things are so essential and yes the council SHOULD be providing 

them and making people aware that they exist.” 

 

There were four suggestions that services could be much more far reaching, and 

could be open to a wider group: 

 

“Move back into the old masters house - open the service up from 

solely dementia to include elderly frail or elderly lonely....maybe price 

according to needs. The old masters house (ie. next to nightingale 

lodge) used to be fun and vibrant /stimulating for all....this ran at 

between 14-16 people a day...there were 5 toilets and a shower 

facility that were easily accessible.......+ a large kitchen - it worked 

well for so many years until moved because allegedly the care home 

was going to be re-built (and would then house masters house).” 

 

Seven comments suggested that the current facilities are inadequate which has 

meant the service has been under-used; the service should be provided at a 

different venue more suited to users’ needs, which may increase future usage.  

 

“Investing properly into this and moving into more suitable premises. 

The last move was a negative step and has contributed to the decline 

in standards and use.” 

 

 

Commissioning services: 

10 comments suggested that an alternative to Masters House could be to 

commission the running of the service from an alternative provider, such as a 

privately run care home. Some respondents suggested commissioning the service 

from a voluntary sector organisation. However, respondents also expressed 

concern that with this option the care provided may not be as stimulating, and staff 

may not be as attentive.  

Page 39



 

17 
 

 

“Obviously I would much prefer for Masters House to stay open but 

as an alternative, using a Care Home for the day would be better 

than nothing.  I did that on a few occasions for my husband. BUT the 

big difference is that there would not be any stimulation at all or very 

little. Masters House staff were remarkable with the clients!!!” 

 

Four comments suggested that there could be opportunities to work in partnership 

with the voluntary sector, allowing voluntary organisations to run activities for those 

with high-end dementia:  

 

“Running voluntary sector led day activities within a wider activity 

based centre, such as a current residential home. People with 

dementia need routine but also engagement with a wider group and 

environment.” 

 

 

Charging or reducing the service: 

Four comments suggested that there could be an additional charge levied on 

service users in order to keep Masters House open:  

 

“An option could be to increase the charges made to carers to 

maintain a facility with the same quality standards. The consultation 

seems to be at variance with Test Valley Borough Council's launch of 

'Romsey as a Dementia Friendly Market Town'!!!”  

 

 

In addition, a reduction of service was suggested to be more preferable than a 

complete closure, and it was felt that this money could be saved in other areas 

such as transport, enabling Masters House Days Service to remain open:  

 

“If reduced opening times are required for financial reasons, a 

reduced number of days per week would be more beneficial for 

service users than complete closure of the Day Centre.” 

 

 

“Cutting down the amount of days that the centre is opened. Not 

providing the service of the mini bus. Service users to bring their own 

lunch.” 

 

 

  

Page 40



 

18 
 

 

Views on the potential impact of the proposals  

 

Respondents were asked what impact, if any, the proposals to close either Bulmer 

House or Masters House could have on them or someone they know. 62 

respondents gave an open-ended response to this question. The majority of 

comments voiced concern for the wellbeing of the service user as well as concern 

about the impact on the carer and family members. Themes that were mentioned 

are shown below, followed by an analysis of these themes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Impact on service users: 

31 comments were made about the potential impact on the service users if either 

Bulmer House or Masters House were to close. Respondents were concerned that 

it may negatively impact their wellbeing, and may result in the loss of friendships 

and much needed social contact, vital to those suffering with dementia:  

 

“My mother attends on Mondays and Fridays and is brought home by 

the mini bus. The centre provides excellent intellectual and social 

stimulation for my mother and ensures she eats a good cooked meal. 

She loves the worker and her friends there. It is part of her weekly 

routine and indeed a highlight of it. Without it she would lose 

relationships she has developed as well as the activities. It has 

helped her cope with dementia.” 

 

There are also concerns that if provision was changed or moved, this would cause 

emotional strain on the service user and impact negatively on their condition:  

 

Page 41



 

19 
 

“The service that is provided at The Masters House is to motivate the 

service user and encourage them during their visit to join in all 

activities offered to them. The service user with Dementia needs 

continuity with familiar staff and surroundings, they will not be getting 

this if and when they are moved.” 

 

 

Quality of care received and a safe environment: 

10 comments related to the quality of care that service users currently receive at 

either Bulmer House or Masters House. There is a concern that the level of care 

will not be comparable if there was an alternative provision:  

 

“My father attends Masters House twice a week. He really enjoys his 

time there. He feels safe and is happy there. He is used to the 

surroundings, staff and other service users. Changing this care to 

maybe a care home environment, I think will have a detrimental effect 

on his well being. It will cause stress and anxiety to him which will in 

turn cause more anguish for my mother, who is his main carer.  Will 

he be stimulated the whole day like he is at Masters House, I think 

not. The carers always have varied activities for service users all day. 

Masters House should not close.” 

 

Respondents were also concerned that service users may not be as safe, and that 

alternative provision may not be dementia-specific:  

 

“The family member with dementia has trust in Bulmer House which 

gives much needed respite to his wife. The alternatives suggested 

are not specific for dementia sufferers. No activities or one to one 

support and suspect security where the sufferer may walk out without 

supervision.” 

 

 

Impact on carers:   

35 comments were made about the potential impact on carers if either Bulmer 

House or Masters House were to close. Respondents were concerned that carers 

may not be able to cope without the support of the day services. Comments also 

suggest that carers are typically older and often the spouse of the service user, 

and therefore the closures could negatively impact on the carer’s physical and 

mental health.  

  

Page 42



 

20 
 

 

“If the closure were to go ahead without an equivalent alternative it 

would have a great effect not only on my father’s mental well being 

but also to my mother’s health as she is his sole carer. Currently my 

mothers only respite from caring for my father is when he attends 

Bulmer House, having time to herself means that she is able to care 

for him a lot better having had a couple of days a week respite.  She 

is 80 years old and finds it not only physically but also mentally 

draining looking after him.” 

 

“I am the main carer for my husband who attends Masters House 

Day Centre twice a week. I am sure without these breaks, our home 

life would not be as happy as it is as it is not only doing him good, but 

a great help to me. He is very happy there. I know he is safe. The 

staff are wonderful and I’m sure without this I would not be able to 

cope.” 

 

 

Impact on family members: 

Five comments suggest a concern about family members, stressing that immediate 

family will find it hard to cope, including financially, without the help of the current 

services:  

 

“This decision is putting an enormous strain on both Carer & 

immediate family members as Bulmer has encouraged [the service 

user] to `expand` his conversation & subsequently is much easier to 

look after during the times when at home. The worry is that an 

`alternative day centre` may not hold the same draw for the user to 

attend & will lose what little contact with other adults other than family 

which is enjoyed and hugely beneficial.” 

 

 

  

Page 43



 

21 
 

Other comments and feedback  

Respondents were asked to give other comments or feedback. 40 respondents 

gave a response to the open-ended question. Themes that were mentioned are 

shown below, followed by an analysis of the key themes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15 comments referenced the perceived lack of promotion of the services that are 

currently offered: 

 

“It took us, as a family, a long time to find out about Masters House.     

Information about it does not seem to be readily available to those 

who need it. We only found out about its existence by accident and 

even then it took along time to get my father booked in. Why is it not 

advertised more? GPs need to make patients aware and also carers 

groups? If more people knew about it maybe it wouldn’t be going 

through consultation.” 

 

10 comments stressed concerns that with an ever-increasing ageing population, 

demand and need for dementia services would similarly increase. Reducing the 

current provision seemed to be ‘short-sighted’:   

 

“As dementia and Alzheimers are increasing it seems short-sighted to 

close down local services prior to getting something else up and 

running. Serious consideration needs to be given to alternative 

provision so that it is appropriate and meets people’s needs, now and 

in the future.” 

 

Four comments also relayed previous worries and concerns around the wellbeing 

of service users if the day services close:  

 

“It will be detrimental to the user’s wellbeing if she is unable to attend 

Bulmer house or some other place that provides similar facilities.” 

 

Page 44



 

22 
 

 

In addition, four comments indicated that there was some concern that the 

proposed alternative care put forward would not provide adequate support for 

those suffering with dementia due to their complex needs. 

 

“For all the talk of consultation with the users and families, it is 

extremely unclear how the proposed new solution would provide 

anything like the specialist care that my mother-in-law currently 

receives. A "lunch club" is of no use to people with advanced 

dementia who need to be stimulated and cared for with considerable 

patience by those with specialist training. Sadly the number of people 

who suffer with forms of dementia is only going to grow in the coming 

decade and therefore we need to be increasing the services available 

for these very vulnerable members of our society, not trying to 

combine their care with users who have very different needs.”  

  

Page 45



 

23 
 

Summary of discussion at the Health and Adult Social Care Select 

Committee workshop  
 

A workshop with Members of the Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee 

was held to consider the ‘Bulmer House and Masters House Day Services’ 

Consultation proposals.  

 

Members recognised that change can be difficult for vulnerable service users, and 

that they would require support throughout any potential move from one setting to 

another, and for a period after that move.   

 

Members highlighted the importance of good communication between the County 

Council and service users, staff, and the two day services’ wider community. 

Members suggested working with local community groups, parish/town councils 

and ‘champions’ to communicate messages about day care in general, and County 

Council consultations.  

 

The ‘Connect to Support’ online resource was seen as an important part of the 

wider need to promote adult social care services and private sector care providers. 

This could be supported by mapped information about day opportunities across the 

county. An alternative approach would be to engage more with providers of day 

services to improve the signposting of older people to existing alternatives – there 

may also be positive impacts of doing this, including finding more personalised 

support to individuals.  

 

Members raised concerns about alternative provision for service users, should the 

two day services close. These concerns included:  

 Ensuring that alternative day service opportunities are sustainably funded, 

particularly if closing these two day services would increase demand 

elsewhere.  

 Taking into account that if the two day services close, changes relating to 

service user travel and transport could be problematic, particularly for disabled 

people.  

 Ensuring affordability for self-funders in the future.  

 Giving sufficient regard to protecting respite services for carers.  

 

Members considered alternative approaches to providing day services. It was 

suggested that a wider network of services and support in the community could be 

utilised to provide day service opportunities, for example: lunch clubs, local 

community-owned assets, or existing services in residential and nursing homes 

which may not usually be on offer to those not in full-time care. Positive and 

Page 46



 

24 
 

innovative examples were given of successful projects, including those where 

people living in residential homes regularly spend time with pre-school and school-

age children.  

 

Members suggested using commissioning approaches to be more innovative in 

developing alternative services. For example, grants schemes could support both 

large and small providers, or groups of providers, to provide bespoke day 

opportunities; or making grant funding available to pump-prime day service 

opportunities in areas of the county which may be less well served. 

 

Members also considered the impacts on staff, skills and potential redeployment to 

other roles within the County Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 47



 

25 
 

Conclusion 

 

53 respondents out of 65 disagreed with the proposals to close Bulmer House and 

Masters House Day Services.  

 

Disagreement with the proposed closures was widespread across respondent 

groups, with carers of current service users, service users themselves and 

respondents who know service users, all disagreeing with the proposed closure.  

 

The current day services were praised by respondents, with many carers in 

particular expressing that they feel confident about leaving their loved ones in a 

safe and secure environment with experienced staff. Respondents think that the 

day services provide service users with stimulation and social interaction; not 

merely 'sitting’ services. 

 

In addition, it was expressed that having familiar surroundings for service users 

was paramount so as not to negatively impact on the service user’s health and 

wellbeing. If the decision is made to close the Day Services, respondents seek 

reassurances that a comparable level of support and care would be available in 

alternative settings.  

 

 

 

Page 48



 

26 
 

Appendices  

Appendix 1 - Consultation Response Form (Standard 

Format) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 49



 

27 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 50



 

28 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 51



 

29 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 52



 

30 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 53



 

31 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 54



 

32 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 55



 

33 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 56



 

34 
 

Appendix 2 – Consultation technical detail  

 

Respondent classification  

 

The below table shows the split of responses via online and paper based surveys.   

 

Method 

Number of 

responses  

Online  41 

Paper  24 
 

Four of the above online responses were received as an un-structured response,  
via email. The comments made were similar to those received through the formal 
consultation open-ended questions. For ease, comments were added into the 
consultation code frame. Below shows a break down of responses by type:  
 

Respondent 

Type 

Number of 

responses  

Member of 

the public 2 

Political 

representative  

2 

 

 

  

Page 57



 

35 
 

Appendix 3 – Consultation participant break down  

 

The breakdown of respondents by category is shown below.  

 

  Response option  Count 

Gender      

  Female 21 

  Male  41 

  Prefer not to say  2 

Please indicate your age 

range.      

  18-34 1 

  35-49 8 

  50-64 18 

  65-79 19 

  80 or over 15 

  Prefer not to say  4 

Do you have a specific 

connection with…     

  Bulmer House Day Service 12 

  Masters House Day Service  44 

  Both - 

  Neither 9 

Which of the following 

statements best describes 

your connection?      

  

I use Masters House or Bulmer House 

Day Service 10 

  

I am a family member/carer of somebody 

that uses Masters House Day Service or 

Bulmer House Day Service 26 

  

I or someone I know used to use these 

Services 17 

  

I am working, or have worked for Masters 

House or Bulmer House Day Service  2 

  

I am a member of the local community or 

a local group in Petersfield 3 

  

I am a member of the local community or 

a local group in Romsey 11 

  

Other 

 3 

Page 58



 

36 
 

Please indicate which 

district of Hampshire you 

live in?     

  Basingstoke and Deane    - 

  East Hampshire    10 

  Eastleigh    3 

  Fareham  2 

  Gosport    - 

  Hart  - 

  Havant    - 

  New Forest    1 

  Rushmoor    - 

  Test Valley 43 

  Winchester    1 

  Not sure    2 

  I do not live in a district of Hampshire   2 

  Prefer not to say 1 

 

 

What is your ethnic group?      

  White 53 

  Mixed / Multiple ethnic groups 1 

  Asian / Asian British - 

  

Black / African / Caribbean / Black 

British - 

  Other ethnic group - 

  Prefer not to say 8 

White - Are you?     

  

English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern 

Irish / British   45 

  Irish - 

  Gypsy or Irish Traveller   - 

  Any other White background 2 

Mixed / Multiple Ethnic - 

Are you?     

  White and Black Caribbean - 

  White and Black African - 

  White and Asian    - 

  

Any other Mixed / Multiple Ethnic 

background 1 

  

Page 59



 

37 
 

Appendix 4 – Coded responses  

 

62 people commented on the proposals to close Bulmer House or Masters House 

Day Service, or described the potential impact that the closures would have on 

them, their family and people they know. These were read in full, then coded by 

theme. Each theme is listed below, alongside counts of the number of times they 

were mentioned: 

 

Themes relating to Alternative Options: Bulmer 

House 

Number of 

mentions  

Keep the existing service  6 

Commissioning services 3 

Commissioning services: Private Sector  1 

Commissioning services: Use existing care homes 1 

Commissioning services: Voluntary sector 1 

Build a purpose built centre 1 

Improve the existing service  2 

Continuity of service 2 

Partnership working in order to fund/keep the service 

running  1 

No increased travel costs for alternative services 1 

Not applicable  2 

Themes relating to alternative options: Masters 

House 

Number of 

mentions  

Keep the service as it is 13 

Commissioning services  10 

Commissioning: private sector  4 

Commissioning: care home 6 

Partnership working 4 

Move the service to a new venue 7 

Access issues  10 

Access: communication  6 

Access: open services to wider group 4 

Charging  2 

Reducing service 2 

Reducing service: transport 1 

Reducing the service: smaller venue 1 

Not a fair question 1 

 

  

Page 60



 

38 
 

 

Themes relating to Impact 

Number of 

mentions  

Wellbeing of service user  31 

wellbeing: change of setting/ lack of continuity  6 

Wellbeing: Create other medical conditions 1 

Wellbeing: uncertainty of service causing emotional 

upset 2 

Wellbeing: loss of friendships/ social contact  15 

Wellbeing: effect on dementia or condition if the 

service is taken away 6 

Effect on other family members  5 

Family members: wellbeing  2 

Effect on carers  35 

Carers: loss of break, not able to cope  27 

Quality of care  10 

Quality: varied activities  2 

Quality: professional staff  5 

Safe and secure  8 

Safe and secure: familiarity with staff  2 

Financial impact 8 

Financial impact for users and families 7 

Increased financial pressure on council 1 

Impact on staff 2 

No comparable services available  2 

Alternative provision is expensive/ inadequate  2 

Gap in provision 1 

Not applicable  7 

 

  

Page 61



 

39 
 

 

Themes relating to Other Comments 

Number of 

mentions  

Access issues 15 

Access: referrals 5 

Access: communication 8 

Continuity with staff  2 

Quality of facility 3 

Population pressures  10 

Increase Council Tax  2 

Charging 2 

Consultation process  1 

Wellbeing of service users  4 

Specialist services  4 

Concerns around staff  2 

Keep the facility open 4 

Find alternative service provider 2 

Satisfied with current service 2 

Find money elsewhere to pay for it 1 

Current building is not suitable  1 

Not applicable 4 

  

Page 62



 

40 
 

Appendix 5 – Data tables  

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Bulmer House Day 

Service? 

The published format that 

was employed.  Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  40 - 2 6 4 28 1 

Web: computer 31 - 1 3 4 14 - 

Web: tablet 4 - - - - 4 - 

Web: Smartphone 5 - - 1 - 4 - 

Paper: Keyed - - 1 2 - 6 1 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Bulmer House Day 

Service? 

 Which of the following 

statements best describes 

your connection? Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  41 - 1 6 3 31 - 

User Masters or Bulmer 

House 5 - - - - 5 - 

Family member/carer of 

somebody that uses Master 

House or Bulmer House 

Day Service 16 - 1 2 1 12 - 

I or someone I know used 

to use these Services 11 - - 2 - 9 - 

I am working, or have  

worked for Master House or 

Bulmer House Day Service  - - - - - - - 

I am a member of the local 

community or a local group 

in Petersfield 3 - - - - 3 - 

I am a member of the local 

community or a local group 

in Romsey 5 - - 2 2 1 - 

Other 1 - - - - 1 - 

Page 63



 

41 
 

 

 

  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Bulmer House Day 

Service? 

Are you…?  Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  39 - 1 6 4 27 1 

Male 13 - 1 1 2 9 - 

Female 25 - - 4 2 18 1 

Other - - - - - - - 

Prefer not to say 1 - - 1 - - - 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Bulmer House Day 

Service? 

Please indicate your age 

range. (Please tick one box)  Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  40 - 1 6 4 28 1 

18 - 34  1 - - - - 1 - 

35 - 49    6 - - - 1 5 - 

50 - 64 12 - - 5 1 6 - 

65 - 79    10 - 1 - 1 8 - 

80 or over 10 - - 1 - 8 1 

Prefer not to say 1 - - - 1 - - 

Page 64



 

42 
 

 

 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Bulmer House Day 

Service? 

Please indicate which 

district of Hampshire you 

live in. Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  40 - 1 6 4 28 1 

Basingstoke and Deane    - - - - - - - 

East Hampshire    10 - 1 - - 9 - 

Eastleigh    3 - - 1 - 2 - 

Fareham  2 - - - 1 1 - 

Gosport    - - - - - - - 

Hart  - - - - - - - 

Havant    - - - - - - - 

New Forest    1 - - - - 1 - 

Rushmoor    - - - - - - - 

Test Valley 20 - - 4 2 13 1 

Winchester    1 - - - 1 - - 

Not sure    1 - - - - 1 - 

I do not live in a district of 

Hampshire   2 - - 1 - 1 - 

Prefer not to say - - - - - - - 

What is your ethnic group?   Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  38 - 1 6 4 26 1 

White 33 - 1 4 3 24 1 

Mixed / Multiple ethnic 

groups 1 - - - - 1 - 

Asian / Asian British - - - - - - - 

Black / African / Caribbean / 

Black British - - - - - - - 

Other ethnic group - - - - - - - 

Prefer not to say 4 - - 2 1 1 - 

 

              

Page 65



 

43 
 

 

 

  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Bulmer House Day 

Service? 

White - Are you? Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total 30 - 1 4 2 22 1 

English / Welsh / Scottish / 

Northern Irish / British   30 - 1 4 2 22 1 

Irish - - - - - - - 

Gypsy or Irish Traveller   - - - - - - - 

Any other White 

background - - - - - - - 

        

 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Bulmer House Day 

Service? 

Mixed / Multiple Ethnic - Are 

you? Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  1 - - - - 1 - 

White and Black Caribbean - - - - - - - 

White and Black African - - - - - - - 

White and Asian    - - - - - - - 

Any other Mixed / Multiple 

ethnic background 1 - - - - 1 - 

Page 66



 

44 
 

 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Masters House Day 

Service? 

The published format which 

was employed Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  58 - - 4 7 41 6 

Web: computer 48 - - 2 4 17 3 

Web: tablet 5 - - - - 4 1 

Web: smartphone 5 - - - - 5 - 

Paper: Keyed - - - 2 3 15 2 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Masters House Day 

Service? 

 Which of the following 

statements best describes 

your connection?  Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  64 - - 3 7 49 5 

I use Masters House or 

Bulmer House Day Service 8 - - 2 1 5 - 

I am a family member/carer 

of somebody that uses 

Master House Day Service 

or Bulmer House Day 

Service 21 - - - 1 17 4 

I or someone I know used 

to use these Services 17 - - 1 2 14 - 

I am working, or have 

worked for Master House or 

Bulmer House Day Service  2 - - - - 2 - 

I am a member of the local 

community or a local group 

in Petersfield 2 - - 1 - - 1 

I am a member of the local 

community or a local group 

in Romsey 11 - - - 3 8 - 

Other 3 - - - - 3 - 

Page 67



 

45 
 

 

 

 

 

  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Masters House Day 

Service? 

Are you…? (Please tick one 

box)  Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  57 - - 4 8 40 6 

Male 18 - - 1 3 13 2 

Female 37 - - 3 5 25 4 

Other - - - - - - - 

Prefer not to say 2 - - - - 2 - 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Masters House Day 

Service? 

Please indicate your age 

range. (Please tick one box)  Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  59 - - 4 8 41 6 

18 - 34  1 - - - - 1 - 

35 - 49    8 - - - 1 7 - 

50 - 64 17 - - 1 2 14 - 

65 - 79    18 - - 1 1 11 5 

80 or over 10 - - 2 3 5 1 

Prefer not to say 4 - - - 1 3 - 

Page 68



 

46 
 

 

 

  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Masters House Day 

Service? 

Please indicate which 

district of Hampshire you 

live in.  Total  

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  59 - - 4 7 42 6 

Basingstoke and Deane    - - - - - - - 

East Hampshire    6 - - 1 - 1 4 

Eastleigh    3 - - 1 - 2 - 

Fareham  1 - - - - - 1 

Gosport    - - - - - - - 

Hart  - - - - - - - 

Havant    - - - - - - - 

New Forest    1 - - - - 1 - 

Rushmoor    - - - - - - - 

Test Valley 42 - - 2 6 34 1 

Winchester    1 - - - 1 - - 

Not sure    1 - - - - 1 - 

I do not live in a district of 

Hampshire   2 - - - - 2 - 

Prefer not to say 1 - - - - 1 - 

Page 69



 

47 
 

 

 

  

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Masters House Day 

Service? 

What is your ethnic group?  

(Please tick one option) Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  56 - - 4 6 40 6 

White 46 - - 4 5 32 6 

Mixed / Multiple ethnic 

groups 1 - - - - 1 - 

Asian / Asian British - - - - - - - 

Black / African / Caribbean / 

Black British - - - - - - - 

Other ethnic group - - - - - - - 

Prefer not to say 8 - - - 1 7 - 

               

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Masters House Day 

Service? 

White - Are you? Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  41 - - 4 4 27 6 

English / Welsh / Scottish / 

Northern Irish / British   39 - - 4 3 26 6 

Irish - - - - - - - 

Gypsy or Irish Traveller   - - - - - - - 

Any other White 

background 2 - - - 1 1 - 

        

Page 70



 

48 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to close Masters House Day 

Service? 

Mixed / Multiple Ethnic - Are 

you? Total 

Strongly 

agree  Agree 

Neither 

agree or 

disagree Disagree 

Strongly 

disagree 

Not 

sure 

Total  1 - - - - 1 - 

White and Black Caribbean - - - - - - - 

White and Black African - - - - - - - 

White and Asian    - - - - - - - 

Any other Mixed / Multiple 

ethnic background 1 - - - - 1 - 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Date: 13 March 2018

Title: Supportive Communities Grant Award

Report From: Director of Adults’ Health and Care

Contact name: Peter Stokes, Strategic Development Manager

Tel:  01962 845389  Email: Peter.Stokes@hants.gov.uk

1. Recommendation(s)
1.1. That approval be given by the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and 

Health to award the following grants: 
i) To award Methodist Homes Association (MHA) a grant totalling £66,304 

over a two year period between April 2018 and March 2020 as part of the 
Community Based Support Grant.

ii) To award Brendoncare Clubs a grant totalling £49,696 over a two year 
period between April 2018 and March 2020 as part of the Community 
Based Support Grant.

2. Executive Summary 
2.1. The purpose of this paper is to seek approval for making grant awards to 

the voluntary and community organisations outlined in this report as part of 
the Supportive Communities Programme.

2.2. The Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) contributes to improving 
people’s quality of life. The grants programme is one of the ways in which 
the County Council supports the sector to support people to live fuller more 
independent lives. 

2.3. The report outlines a proposal for funding towards projects to support 
support older people on the cusp of care within their local communities in 
Winchester and Gosport, and how it complements similar schemes in the 
other districts of Hampshire that are already funded. 

3. Contextual information
3.1. The aim of the Supportive Communities Programme is to increase 

community self-sufficiency, help build inclusive, strong communities and 
promote individual independence. This will help to reduce, delay and/or 
divert demand on Adults’ Health and Care.

Page 73

Agenda Item 2



3.2. A voluntary organisation may be considered for grant aid from the County 
Council only if its services, projects or activities are in compliance with the 
aims and objectives, priorities and policies of the County Council.

3.3. Grants are awarded to support services that are better provided by the 
voluntary sector e.g. the mobilisation of community resources to help 
vulnerable people maintain their independence.

3.4. A grant is defined as a sum of money to support a particular activity.  It does 
not usually cover the entire cost of the activity and it is legally considered to 
be a one-sided gift, rather than a payment in exchange for services.

3.5. Voluntary and community organisations provide valuable locally based 
services that are often rooted in the communities which they serve.  
Significant benefit is produced through this activity, often through voluntary 
action and focused towards activity that clearly assists in providing early 
intervention and prevention initiatives.  Grant funding by the County Council 
contributes to and helps sustain this activity.

3.6. As grants are a contribution to service or activity costs the economic benefit 
to the department can be significant, levering in additional funding, the 
benefit of volunteer time and therefore providing good value for money to the 
authority.

3.7. Organisations will not normally be eligible for grants where they hold 
balances in excess of one year's running costs.  Those organisations 
receiving recurring funding which hold in excess of three months' running 
costs, and where they cannot demonstrate through their reserves policy that 
these reserves are justified, may receive a reduced grant.  To establish the 
level of reserves, organisations are required to provide a set of their latest 
accounts and annual report with their application and before grant payment 
is made – in the case of organisations with an income of £10,000 or above, 
these must be independently examined or audited.  If organisations have 
reserves in excess of three months, we will apply the reserves policy which 
is inline with the Charity Commission’s policy on these matters.

4. Community Based Support Grant
4.1. The Community Based Support Grant shall support in the development of a 

community based support service in Hampshire. The community based 
support model fits within the prevention and early intervention landscape: the 
idea is to support older people on the cusp of care within their local 
communities.  These support solutions will be based in a local venue which 
will act as a hub for the local community.  The range of support solutions will 
include befriending, support for carers, services which keep people in 
contact, transport and meals, social activities and wellbeing services.

4.2. The Community Based Support Grant is a contribution to the operation of 
the services provided. The organisations awarded the funding are expected 
to secure funding from other sources, as well as charging a small fee to 
those that use the service who can afford to do so. As a result the award 
made by the County Council is expected to account for no more than 21% of 
the total funding of the services provided.

Page 74



4.3. The grants to support the development of Community Based Support 
schemes in Winchester and Gosport will complement community based 
support schemes that were established and supported in the other nine 
District Council areas in 2017–18 (Decision 8052) which achieve the same 
outcomes. It is envisaged that the existing schemes will form part of the 
overall approach for Hampshire. The reason for not including Winchester 
and Gosport in the previous Community Based Grant award was that similar 
services were previously awarded funding from the Older Persons 
Community Support Grant (Decision Reports 6548 and 7077), which ends 
on 31 March 2018

4.4. The organisation recommended for a Community Based Support grant 
award of £33,152 per year for two years towards delivering a service in 
Winchester is Methodist Homes Association (MHA). In the two years they 
expect their service to support over 400 older people. 

4.5. The organisation recommended for a Community Based Support grant 
award of £24,848 per year for two years towards delivering a service in 
Gosport is Brendoncare Clubs. In the two years they expect their service to 
support 400 older people.

5. Supportive Communities Programme
5.1. All grant applications received are considered in relation to how well they link 

with current Adults’ Health and Care priorities, in particular:

 Maximising independence and inclusion;

 Right support in the right place at the right time for users;

 Vulnerable people are protected;

 Delivering a high quality, cost-effective service to the vulnerable people 
of Hampshire.

5.2. Applicants have to demonstrate how they would work with people aged 65 
years and over at risk of social isolation and diminished independence. 
Applicants are required to demonstrate their ability to help people with 
various levels of need through a wide range of solutions based upon a asset 
based approach. These approaches are based on creating and sustaining 
broadly based support in the community, outside the traditional boundaries 
of health and social care services, to promote good health and wellbeing as 
well as strong social connections. An asset-based approach takes account 
of how people live and how they can be enabled to realise their potential.

6. Finance
6.1. The grant proposals in this report will commit additional expenditure totalling 

£116,000 over a two year period commencing 2018/19. The expenditure has 
been profiled between years as follows, £58,000 in 2018/19, £58,000 in 
2019/20. Subject to approval of this report the total grants committed for 
payment will remain within the agreed, (2018/19) and anticipated, (2019/20)  
annual budget envelopes for the Supportive Communities Programme.

Page 75



6.2. Payments of both grant awards set out in this report will be made in two 
instalments for each year of the grant award. The first payment of the award 
will be made on signature of the grant agreement, with payment of the 
remainder of the grant subject to the receipt of the organisations annual 
accounts for the previous financial year. All grant agreements have 
conditions that enable the County Council to require repayment of the award 
or any part of it if it remains unspent at the end of the grant period, or if there 
is a material breach of the grant agreement.

7. Risk Assessment and Management
7.1. The provision of grants to voluntary and community sector organisations by 

statutory bodies always presents a degree of risk.  Specific risks that 
statutory bodies are required to manage include voluntary and community 
organisations accepting funding without providing any activity; organisations 
not delivering the service as expected; and there being an under spend on 
the expected activity.  This applies to all grants; however larger grants 
represent a potentially higher risk to the County Council.

7.2. A number of mechanisms have been employed successfully over a number 
of years to mitigate and alleviate these risks.  These include nominating a 
Liaison Officer from the County Council whose responsibility is to monitor 
how the grant is spent, specifying within the grant agreement that the grant 
is ‘restricted’ funding for the provision of the specified activity only and 
phasing the payment of grants over the course of the award duration..

7.3. All organisations awarded a grant sign a declaration stating they accept that 
grant funding can only be awarded for the given period and no commitment 
exists from the County Council to continue funding after this time, or in 
subsequent years.

8. Consultation and Equalities
8.1. It is for the Executive Member as decision maker to have due regard to the 

need to: eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Equality Act and advance equality of 
opportunity and foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

8.2. The grants awarded under the Community Based Support Grant will have a 
neutral impact on groups with protected characteristics identified in the 
Equality Act 2010, as although the name of the grant pot has changed it is 
expected that grants awarded to organisations will be broadly similar to 
current levels of funding for similar schemes. As a result it is likely that a 
similar number of individuals in each the protected characteristics will 
benefit, with older people being of particular benefit.

Page 76



Integral Appendix A

CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic
growth and prosperity:

yes

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent
lives:

yes

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment:

no

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities:

yes

Other Significant Links
Links to previous Member decisions:
Title Date
Supportive Communities Grants Award (Reference 8052)

Older Persons Community Support Grant (Reference 
7077)

Older Persons Community Support Grant (Reference 
6548)

17 January 2017 

25 November 2015

11 March 2015

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 77



Integral Appendix B

IMPACT ASSESSMENTS:

1. Equality Duty
1.1. The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 

(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited under the Act;

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, gender and sexual orientation) and those 
who do not share it;

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
a)  The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 

relevant characteristic connected to that characteristic;
b)  Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
c)  Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 

public life or in any other activity which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low.

1.2. Equalities Impact Assessment:
The grants awarded under the Community Based Support Grant will have a 
neutral impact on groups with protected characteristics identified in the Equality 
Act 2010, as although the name of the grant pot has changed it is expected that 
grants awarded to organisations will be broadly similar to current levels of funding 
for similar schemes. As a result it is likely that a similar number of individuals in 
each the protected characteristics will benefit, with older people being of particular 
benefit.

2. Impact on Crime and Disorder:
The County Council has a legal obligation under Section 7 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to consider the impact of all decisions it makes on the 
prevention of crime.  The proposal in this report aims to improve the safety of 
vulnerable Hampshire residents and reduce the risk of crime occurring

3. Climate Change:
a) How does what is being proposed impact on our carbon footprint / energy 

consumption?

Page 78



Integral Appendix B

The Supportive Communities Grant Programme proposes to support local 
organisations providing services within local communities.  This reduces the need 
to travel and therefore reduces both the carbon footprint and energy consumption.

b) How does what is being proposed consider the need to adapt to climate 
change, and be resilient to its longer term impacts?

The proposal recognises the need to adapt to climate change and issues will be 
addressed throughout the period of the grant award through the monitoring of 
outcomes.

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Executive Decision Record (PROPOSED)

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Date: 13 March 2018

Title: Harry Sotnick House

Report From: Director of Adults’ Health and Care

Contact name: Karen Ashton

Tel: 01962 845612 Email: Karen.ashton@hants.gov.uk

1. The decision (PROPOSED):
a) That the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health give approval for 

Hampshire County Council to enter in to an agreement to provide assistance 
to Portsmouth City Council (the City Council) to manage a care home with 
nursing at Harry Sotnick House, with effect from 1 April 2018 initially for up to 
two years on the basis set out in the exempt report.

2. Reasons for the decision:
2.1. The purpose of this report is to seek agreement from the Executive Member 

for Adult Social Care and Health to provide assistance to Portsmouth City 
Council to maintain care home with nursing at Harry Sotnick House, 
Portsmouth, which is currently subject to Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
enforcement action. 

2.2. The arrangement would initially run for up to two years, with the aim of the 
County Council establishing a safe, caring, responsive, effective, and well-led 
service assessed at an improved rating by CQC.  The intention is that after 2 
years the service would be in a position to transfer to the City Council, subject 
to registration with CQC being approved. 

2.3. To maintain existing capacity within the wider Hampshire system to facilitate 
people being able to leave hospital and minimise delayed transfers of care 
generally.

3. Other options considered and rejected:
3.1. Not to provide assistance with the City Council to avoid needing to facilitate 

moving all residents from Harry Sotnick House to alternative care settings.  
This would not be the best outcome for residents and would go against local 
authorities co-operating with each other.

3.2. To provide limited assistance in facilitating the move of all residents from 
Harry Sotnick House.  This would not be the best outcome for residents.

Page 81

Agenda Item 4



4. Conflicts of interest:
4.1. Conflicts of interest declared by the decision-maker: None

4.2. Conflicts of interest declared by other Executive Members consulted: Not 
applicable

5. Dispensation granted by the Conduct Advisory Panel: none. 

6. Reason(s) for the matter being dealt with if urgent: not applicable.

7. Statement from the Decision Maker: 

Approved by:

--------------------------------------------------

Date:

13 March 2018

Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health
Councillor Liz Fairhurst

Page 82



Document is Restricted

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Outcome on the consultation on the proposed closure of Bulmer House Day Service in Petersfield and Masters House Day Service in Romsey
	Consultation Findings

	2 Supportive Communities Grant Award
	4 Harry Sotnick House
	Exempt report


